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MEMORANDUM SUPPORTING PLAINTIFF'S MOTION FOR TEMPORARY 
RESTRAINING ORDER, OTHER EQUITABLE RELIEF, AND ORDER TO 

SHOW CAUSE WHY A PRELIMINARY INJUNCTION SHOULD NOT ISSUE 

I. INTRODUCTION 

The FTC brings this action to 

fiaudulent products, including weight loss patches and a human growth hormone spray, on 

dozens of Web sites. Defendants falsely claim that their patches will cause weight loss and that 

their human growth hormone spray will reverse the aging process. Several experts demonstrate 

that these products actually do nothing at all. Defendants likely sell hundreds of thousands of 

dollars of fiaudulent products each month. 

To direct traffic to their Web sites, Defendants are flooding consumers' in-boxes with 

massive amounts of spam. In fact, consumers have forwarded nearly 400,000 of Defendants' e- 

mail messages to the FTC since January l ,  2004. All of this spam violates central provisions of 

the recently enacted federal e-mail law, Controlling the AedeT4iTB]TJ
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and Marketing Act of 2003 ("CAN-SPAM"), 15 U.S.C. 



Although the FTC' s investigation has revealed that Defendants are located in Australia 

and New Zealand (PX 1 q[m 54-55, Att. X), Defendants take great strides to conceal their identity 

when selling their products. Their Web pages fail to provide any information identifying the 

sellers. (Id. ¶'l[ 13-16, 21-23,28-30, Atts. C, G, K.) Their Web site addresses change regularly 

and identify the site owners as individuals in various countries, such as Hong Kong, Singapore, 

Malaysia and Japan. (Id. q[m 8, 11-12, Att. B.) Orders for Defendants' products are fulfilled by 

various companies located in the United States, and no information is provided with the products 

identifying the seller. (Id. mq[ 19,26, 34, Atts. E, I, M.) 

A. Global Web Promotions Pty Ltd. 

Global Web Promotions Pty Ltd. ( "GWY)  is an Australian company with four 

shareholders. (PX 1 ¶ 54, Att. X.) Credit card transactions for purchases of Defendants' products 

identify GWP as the merchant. (Id. fl13,14, 17-18,21,24-25,28,32-33, Atts. D, H, L.) 

B. Lance Atkinson 

Lance T. Atkinson - a resident of Christchurch, New Zealand - is a registered member 

and 25% shareholder of GWP. (PX 1 1% 54-55, Att. X.) Atkinson is actively involved in the 

operations of GWP. In particular, he has registered domain names used as customer service sites 

for GWP products, including "herbal-support.com" and "herbalcustomers.com." (Id. m37-38, 

Atts. P, Q.) 

C. Michael Van Essen 

Michael Van Essen is a registered director and owns the largest share of GWP. (PX 1 

¶'J 54-55, Att. X.) Van Essen lives at the Australian address identified as GWPYs principal place 

of business. (Id. ¶ 55, Att. X.) Van Essen has also registered domain names utilized by GWP in 

its business. (Id. q[ 40, Att. R.) 





LOSE WEIGHT THE EASIER WAY "ITS NOT A DIET... IT'S A 
PATCH" . . . The Herbal RX Diet Patch . . . is so easy to use just peel and stick 
then watch the pounds melt away. 

Herbal RX Diet Patch is a cutting-edge, advanced appetite suppressant, 
metabolism booster, and energy enhancer ... all in one! With Herbal RX Diet Patch, 
there are no more starvation diets and no difficult and dangerous exercises! It 
works all day & all night long! Just place a new adhesive skin patch anywhere on 
your body, each day for continuous, safe, and effective weight loss. Much like a 
Nicotine Patch takes away your craving for cigarettes, Herbal-RX Diet Patch 
drastically reduces your cravings for food, so you naturally do not want to 
over-eat. While at the same time, Herbal-RX Diet Patch is boosting your energy 
level, and jump-starting your metabolism to bum maximum body fat. 

How much weight will I lose with Herbal-RX Diet Patch? 
In recent laboratory studies results proved that most people lose from 2 to 4 lbs. 
per week. There have been cases reported of as much as 6-lbs weight loss in one 
week. Results will vary from person to person, determined by how well you 
follow your weight loss program. 

(Id. ¶ 14, Att. C pp. 1,3, 8.) 

Defendants' claims about their weight loss patches are wholly false and cannot be 

substantiated. The FTC has consulted with Michael D. Jensen, M.D., a Professor of Medicine 

with the Mayo Clinic College of Medicine. (See PX 2.) Dr. Jensen states that there is no 

credibl., 





products is so minuscule that its presence is irrelevant. (Id.) In sum, the experts state that the 

products will have no discernable effect on a user whatsoever. (PX 3 ¶ 26; PX 4 q[ 25.) 

B. Defendants' Illegal Spam Practices. 

Defendants have initiated millions of spam e-mail messages touting their products that 

violate CAN-SPAM, 15 U.S.C. 5 7701 et seq, the federal law regulating e-mail practices that 

became effective on January 1,2004. Congress passed CAN-SPAM after finding that spamming 

imposes significant costs on the e-mail system that are passed along to subscribers in the form of 

higher prices and reduced convenience. See 15 U.S.C. $5 7701(a)(3), (4). Congress further 

found that unsolicited e-mail messages - most of which are fraudulent or deceptive in one or 

more respects - threaten the convenience and efficiency of e-mail, an "extremely important and 

popular means of communication." Id. at $8 7701(a)(l), (2). The law does not make all 

unsolicited e-mail illegal; it simply proscribes the most abusive practices. For example, it+ 

requires that commercial e-mail messages correctly identify their source, allow consumers to 

unsubscribe, and contain a 



practice often referred to as "spoofing." This practice conceals the true identity of the sender and 

makes it seem that the spam is coming from a variety of innocent par tie^.^ 

The FTC has attached 



rn an individual's personal e-mail address was flooded with hundreds of "bounced" e-mail 
messages attributable to Defendants, forcing the individual to miss messages from his 
friends and family and eventually cancel the personal e-mail address that he had used for 
nine years (PX 12 2-4, Att. A). 

2. Failure to provide clear and conspicuous opt-out mechanism and a 
physical address 

CAN-SPAM also requires that senders provide a clear and conspicuous notice of the 

opportunity to decline to receive further e-mail messages and provide a physical postal address 

where the sender can be reached. See 15 U.S.C. $7704(a)(5). If complied with, these steps 

would provide consumers with some tools to protest and prevent themselves from being 

subjected to additional spam. The FTC has attached representative examples of commercial e- 

mail messages initiated by Defendants. (See PX 



exercised their authority to grant TROs in 





2. Defendants are initiating commercial e-mail that violates CAN-SPAM. 

Defendants are also engaging in commercial e-mail 



Additionally, CAN-SPAM makes it unlawful 



at the same address listed as Van Essen's residential address. (PX 1 9 54-55, Att. X.)ll Both 

Atkinson and Van Essen have purchased Internet domain names used by GWP. (PX 1 q[¶ 37-38, 

40, Atts. P, Q, R.) As a result of their intimate involvement with GWP, both Van Essen and 

Atkinson had reason to know of the company's deceptive practices. See, e.g., FTC v. Growth 



F.3d at 534 (district court has authority in FTC action to "order any ancillary equitable relief 

necessary to effectuate the exercise of the granted powers"). 

Here, the FTC requests that the Court issue a TRO that includes ancillary equitable relief 

narrowly tailored to stop Defendants' scam immediately.'' The FTC's proposed TRO would 

enjoin Defendants from violating the FTC Act and CAN-SPAM. (See Proposed TRO $5 I, II.) 

It also would require that Defendants preserve records and provide an accounting of sales and 

assets. (See Proposed TRO $5 IV, VIII.) Defendants' deceptive products are shipped to 

consumers from within the U.S. (PX 1 mq[ 19,26,34.) The proposed TRO seeks a stay of order 

processing and fulfillment of those products. (See Proposed TRO 5 ID.) The FTC also seeks 

leave to conduct limited expedited discovery so that it may quickly determine whether assets 

wrongfully obtained from consumers or relevant documents are located in the United States. 

(See Proposed TRO 5 K.) Such order provisions do not work an undue hardship on Defendants,:\ 

for Defendants have no legitimate interest in persisting with unlawful conduct. See, e.g., FTC v. 

World Wide Factors, 882 F.2d 344,347 (7th Cir. 1989) (upholding finding of "no oppressive 

hardship to defendants in requiring them to comply with the FTC Act, refrain from fraudulent 

representation or preserve their assets from dissipation or concealment"); Sabal, 32 F. Supp. 2d 

at 1009 (same). 

l2 The FTC's Proposed Temporary Restraining Order is attached to its Motion for a Temporary 
Restraining Order, Other Equitable Relief, and Order to Show Cause Why a Preliminary Injunction 
Should Not Issue. 



VI. CONCLUSION 

Defendants have caused and are likely to continue to cause consumer injury because of 

the FTC Act and CAN-SPAM violations. This Court should issue the requested injunctive relief 

to prevent ongoing consumer harm and to help ensure the possibility of effective final relief. 

Respectfully Submitted, 

WILLIAM E. KOVACIC 
General Counsel 

Dated: 


